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1. Name of Property

historic name St. Margaret Catholic Church
other names/site number

2. Location

street & number T A HWY 43 & Interstate 12 NI/A| not for publication
city, town Albany K | vicinity
state Louisiana code LA county Livingston code 063 zip code /0711

3. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
[E private X building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
[] public-tocal [ Idistrict 2 1 buildings
[]public-State [ site sites
] public-Federal [ structure structures

[ ] object objects

2 1 Total
Name of related multiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously
N/A listed in the National Register

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this
nomination [___I request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
In my opinion, tEg propedy [X]meets [_does not meet the National Register criteria. [ see continuation sheet.
ﬁu&u‘/ December 16, 1991

Signature of certifying official Leslie P. Tassin, State Historic Preservation Date

Officer, Dept of Culture, Recreation and Tourism
State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property [Imeets [_]does not meet the National Register criteria. [ Isee continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification gatersea -7 "m“,ﬂ
I, hereby, certify that this property is: //‘, 7 Yot d rnngl SURLES
¢ 7 e S
| %Ientered in the National Register. o x, 3 p */;5 / - /é
[_]see continuation sheet. ’ a /2// (/& 1‘“"’;‘.’%, s Ltz /)2 E e Ap-a

[ ] determined eligible for the National
Register. [:I See continuation sheet.

[_]determined not eligible for the
National Register.

[]removed from the National Register.
[lother, (explain:)

/

/(igy@gnature of the Keeper Date of Action
'




6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions) Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)

RELIGION/religious structure RELIGION/religious structure

7. Description

Architectural Classification Materials (enter categories from instructions)
(enter categories from instructions)

foundation __Prick

Gothic Revival walls aluminum
roof asphalt
other

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

5t. Margaret Catholic Church (1810) is a frame Gothic Revival building
located in the rural hamlet of Hungarian Settlement, which is just south of
Albany and Interstate 12. BAlthough there have been some alterations, including
the installation of alumimum siding, the church retains its overall histeric
appearance. 7

St. Margaret's has a basilican plan with a central entrance tower surmounted
by a belfry and a broach spire. The belfry is enlivened by sharply pointed
gables set on each of its four sides. Most of the windows take the form of
single center arch lancets with the upper glazing bars worked into a verv simple
tracery pattern. The one exception is the gallery window, which features an
elliptically arched top. 1It, too, has upper glazing bars worked into a tracery
pattern. Louvered openings in the belfry echo the shape of the lancet windows.

The simple flushboard nave culminates in a round arch apse ceontaining the
altar. The inscription above the altar reads "Dicsoseg Mennyben az Istennek"
{("Glory to God in Heaven" in Hungarian). Small rooms are set either side of the
apse. The nave is surmounted by a wooden pointed vault which springs from a
heavy molded cornice. At the back of the nave ils a small gallery featuring a
plain balustrade.

Alterations

Within the past fifty years the church bhas sustained the following changes.
For the record, no noteworthy changes occurred before that time.

1. The exterior has been completely sheathed in aluminum siding. It should be
noted that the gauge of the substitute siding is the same as the original
siding, and the siding is textured in a wanner resembling wood. In
addition, the window and door surrounds are separately sheathed so that they
retain their visual identity.

2. A small wing has been added at the rear.

3. The tower base has been fitted waith a small single bay entrance porch with a
handicap access ramp.

4, Higtoric vhotographs reveal that the windows were originally clear glass.

Today they are coloved glass. See continuation sheet



8. Statement of Significance

Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:

[Inationally [ ]statewide  [X]locally

Applicable National Register Criteria [ JA [ |B [ Jc [_]D
Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [X]JA [ ]B8 [Jc [ o [Je [JF e

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
ethnic heritage i 1910-1941 1910-1941

Cultural Affiliation

N/A
Significant Person Architect/Builder
N/A unknown

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

Qt. Margaret's Catholic Church is locally significant in the area of ethnic
history becsause it and the Hungarian Presbyterian Church survive to best
vepresent the ethnic heritage of Hungarian Settlement. The year 1941 was chosen
to end the period of significance because Hungarian Settlement continued to be an
ethnic comminity up to and past the fifty year cutoff.

Hungarian immigrants from the North were first attracted to the area around
1896. The stimulus was the Charles Brakenridge Lumber Company, which advertised
in Hungarian newspapers for workers, promising employment as well as the
vpportunity to buy land. The three original settlers were Julius Bruskay,
Tivador Zboray and Adam Mocsary. They in turn wrote to friends and relatives in
both Bmerica and Hungary, and Bruskay and Zboray visited Hungarian communities in
the North to spread the word. Also, the Illincis Central Railroad paid to
advertise the area in an Hungarian newspaper in Cleveland, Ohioc. By 1900,
seventeen Hungarian families had moved to the sawmill comsmanity. They called
their settlement Arpadhon, or "place of Arpad,” in howor of a legendary #ungarian
hero. The earliest building {(besides the mill complex) was the Immigration
House, a large two story building built by Brakenridge Lumber to serve various
needs. It provided temporary lodging for settlers and helped meet the immediate
religious, educational and social needs of the fledgling colony. By 1910, the
population of Arpadhon had grown to sixty~five families {291 veople}.
Presbyterians built their permanent place of worship in 1908 and the larger
Catholic population built S8i. Margaret's in 1910. HNamed for a patron saint of
Hungary, the church was consecrated in 1912,

Doegpite the mill's closing in 1916, Arpadhon continued to grow in the 1920s
ag move and more Hungarians made it thelr home. Now the economic foundation was
agriculture, with strawberrieg ag the dominant crop. ¥From the very beginning,
one of the chief inducements to immigrate to the area had been the opportunity to
bywy cutover land {iu twenty acre parcels) from the lumber company. In the early
years, settlers combined farming with a long dayv's work in the mill. After the

@ See continuation sheet



9. Major Bibliographicai References

Mocsary, Victoria Ann. Arpadhon: The Largest Rural Hungarian Settlement in the United
States. Hammond, Louisiana: Center for Regional Studies, Southeastern Louisiana
University, Folklife in the Florida Parishes Series, Vol. IV, 1990.

Historic photographs of Hungarian Settlement. On display at St. Margaret's Catholic Church.

[:] See continuation sheet
Previous documentation on file (NPS): N/A

Dpreliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) Primary location of additional data:
has been requested @ State historic preservation office
[_—_]previously listed in the National Register [_]Other State agency
E]previously determined eligible by the National Register [:] Federal agency
E]designated a National Historic Landmark [___] Local government
[Jrecorded by Historic American Buildings [_Juniversity
Survey # ] other
Drecorded by Historic American Engineering Specify repository:
Record #

10. Geographical Data
Acreage of property less than an acre

UTM References

AlLS5 171.3.203,0,0 133173550 B 1 T R A BV B B
Zone  Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing
clol Ll b v bbb Ly (o 20 NI N T T TR B A B B

E] See continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description
Please refer to enclosed sketch map.

D See continuation sheet

Boundary Justification

Boundary lines to the north and east are defined by roadways, as noted on the enclosed
map. The boundary lines to the south and west were drawn as they were to exclude
non-contributing elements located on the church property —-- a modern rectory to the south
and a cemetery with a large number of modern gravemarkers to the rear (southwest).

[_]See continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By
nameftitte _ National Register Staff
organization Division of Historic Preservation date November 1991

street & number _P. 0. Box 44247 telephone __504-342-8160
city or town Baton Rouge state LA zip code _70804
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dagassment of Integrity

Although the aforementioned alterations are not inconsiderable, it should be
amphasized that anyone from the historic period wouvld instantly recognize the
church today, which is the litmus test for National Register eligibility for
higtorically significant properties.

Contributing/Non~contributing Elements

Also located within the nominated area is one non-contributing element: a
modern educational building. There is a 1920s meeting hall which is being listed
as a contributing element. As noted in Item &, the hall and its Presbyterian
counterpart served as civic centers, so~to-speak, for ilungarian Settlement.
Although aluminum sided, it retains enough of its historic appearance to be
recognized by someone from the historic period. (A historic photograph of the
hatl provided the necessary compavison.)
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mill closed, they turned completely to farming, capitalizing on the strawberry
boom occurring in the area. By 193%, Arpadhon had reached its peak population of
about 200 families (1500 individuals). Up until the post World War I1 era, it
was a strong self-contained ethnic comminity where English was seldom heard and
Hungarian married Hungarian. In later years the name Arpadhon faded from use,

as more and more people simply referred to the community as Hungarian Settlement,
the name it is known by today.

Today there 1s little left standing to represent the once thriving Hungarian
colony of Arpadhon. Historically, it was a rural hamlet of scattered farms.
Early farmhouses, as shown in photographs, were board and batten buildings with
simple porches across the front and rear. Population figures demonstrate that at
its peak, there must have been about 200 farmsteads in the settlement. Today,
the farmsteads may still be there, but the old family home has been replaced with
@ brick ranch house. Only about a half dozen older houses survive, in varying
stages of integrity. WNone of these are the type of board and batten farmhouses
that represent the earliest housing stock. Perhaps the most significant building
in Arpadhon, the ITwmigration House, is long gone. Fortunately, a photo survives.
The community also had its own Hungarian newspaper, but the building where it was
published is also gone, as are the farmer's association meeting hall and the
buildings housing St. Margaret's Parochial School and the Hungarian Settlement
Public Grammar School. The latter was built in about 1920 and burned during the
1927-28 szschool year. A frame school building moved to Arpadhon after the fire
from nearby Springfield survives in deteriorated condition.

Historiecally, life in Arpadhon revolved around the two churches, St.
Margaret's and the Hungarian Presbyterian Church. In addition to providing a
place ta worship, they were the focus of comunity activities. Various events
were held on the grounds, and a hall on each property served, in effect, as a
community center where plays were performed, lectures given, etc. Fortunately,
both of the original church buildings are still there. The Community Hall on the
grounds of the Presbyterian Church is gone, while the hall at St. Margaret's
survives.

0f the few buildings that remain in Hungarian Settlement, the two churches
are clearly the most representative of the community's ethnic heritage. They
date from the early vears of settlement and were used by the community at large.
While the few residences and the moved-in school could be from anywhere, St.
Margaret Catholic Church, named for a patron saint of Hungary and proclaiming
"Glory to God in Heaven® in Hungarian above the altar, is a strong visual
reminder of the community's ethnic heritage. It should also be noted that the
two churches were and are regarded as preservers of Hungarian culture and

CONTINUED
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traditions. This is perhaps best summarized in a statement from the Arpadhon
Hungarian Settlement Cuoltural Agsociation: "Words alone can in no way describe
the emotional attachment and the cultural importance that the Hungarian
descendents hold for St. Margaret's Catholic¢ Church and the Hungarian
Presbyterian Church. These two structures equally share the privilege of being
the cornerstones of the entire cultural heritage of this community."
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